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UNITED STATES DISTRJCT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff: 

v. 

LANCE THOMAS ATKINSON, 

INET VENTIJRES PTY LTD, an Australian 
proprietary company, 

JODY MICHAEL SMITH, 

TANGO PAY INC., a Delaware corporation, 

CLICK FUSION INC., a Delaware corporation, 

TWOBUCKS TRADING ------) 

Case No. 08CV5666 

Judge Virginia M. Kendall 

Magistrate Judge Maria Valde>: 

DEFAULT .JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION 
AND MONETARY RELIEF AS TO DEF.ENDANTS 

LANCE THOMAS ATKINSON,INET VENTURES PTY LTD., 
TANGO PAY INC., CLICK FUSION INC., ANll TWOBUCKS TRAnING LIMITED 

On October 6, 2008, PlaintitI Federal Trade Commission ("Commission" or "FTC"), 

pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 ofthe 
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6. The FTC's Complaint states a claim upon which rcliefmay be granted against the 

Defaulting Defendants under Sections 5,12, l3(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. §§ 45, 52, 

53(b) and 57b. 

7. TIle Defaulting Defendants were served with the Complaint and Summons as 
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reply requesting not to receive future commercial e-mail from Defendants, 

and that remains capable of receiving such messages for no less than 30 days 

after the transmission ufthe original message, 

in violation of Sections 5(a)(5)(A)(ii) and/or 5(a)(3) ofCAN-SPAM, 15 U.Se. § 7704(a)(5)(A) 

and/or § 7704(a)(3). 

15. The Court further finds that Defaulting Defendants have initiated the transmission, 

to protected computers, of commercial e-mail messages that fail to provide the senders' valid 

physical postal address in violation of Section 5(a)(5)(A)(iii) of CAN-SPAM, 15 V.S.c. § 

7704( a)( 5 )(A)(iii). 

16. The Court further finds that Deltmdants Tango Pay Inc., Click Fusiun Inc. and 

Two13ucks Trading Limited have operated as a common enterprise by sharing officers, employees, 

office locations, and c01l11l1ingling funds in furtherance of a scheme to engage in unfair or deceptive 

acts or practices in or aflccting commerce. Therefore, Defendants Tango Pay Inc., A)(iii). 



Case 1:08-cv-05666     Document 51      Filed 11/04/2009     Page 6 of 25

18. Tt is proper in this case to issue a permanent injllliction prohibiting the Defaulting 

Detendants from making. or assisting others in making. false or misleading statements or 

representations in comlcction with the advertising. marketing, oifcring for sale, or sale of any good 

or service, or from further violations ofCAN-SPAM. See FTC v. Febre, 128 F.3d 530, 534 (7th Cir. 

J997);Amy Travel, 875 F.2d at 572. 

19. Tt is proper in this case to enter equitable monetary relief against the Defaulting 

Defendants for consumer injury caused by their violation ofthe FTC Act for the deceptive sale of 

the products discussed above through illegal spam email messages. See Febre, 128 F.3d at 537 

(court may "order repayment of money lor consumer redress as restitution" and may order 

disgorgcment of ill-gotten gains to "prevent[] the defendant from being unjustly enriched by the 

fraud"). The usual method of calculating restitution is detenllining the "full amount lost by 

consumers" Id. at 536. The Court llnds tlllt: 

(A) the total amount of consumer injury caused by Defendants Lance Thomas 

Atkinson and Tne! Ventures Pty Ltd. for the sale of their 1I0odia Products, 

Male Enhancement Products, prescription drugs, and other products through 

illegal commercial email messages is $15,151,029; and 

(B) the total amount of consumer injury caused by (by )Tj
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DEFINITIONS 

1_ "Advertising" or "Advertisement" means any written or verhal statement, illustralion, 

or depiction that is designed to effect a sale or create interest in lhe purchasing of goods or 

services, whether it appears in a brochure, newspaper, magazine, pamphlet, leaflet, circular, 

mailer, hook insert, free standing insert, letter, catalogue, poster, chart, billboard, public transit 

card, point ofpurchasc display, packaging insert, label, film, slide, radio, television or cable 

television, audio program transmitted over a telephone syslem, program-length commercial 

("infomercial"), Internet website (including metalags), or in any other medium. 

2. "Asset" or "Assets" mean any legal or equitable interest in, righllo, or claim to, any real 

and personal property, including but nol limited to chattel, goods, instruments, equipment, 

fixtures, general intangibles, effects, leaseholds, premises, contracts, mail or other deliveries, 

shares of stock, lists of consumer names, inventory, checks, noles, accounts, credits, receivables, 

funds, and all cash, wherever localed_ 

3. "Assisting others" includes, hut is not limited to: (I) per/()rm0 Td
(or )Tj 9gTc 11.5031 0 87contractsuTj
0.0037 Tc 4.7 7 w618er 
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promotion of a commercial product or service (including content on an Internet website operated 

for a commercial purpose)." 15 U.S.c. ~ 7702(2) (A) (2004). 

6. "Competent and reliable scientific evidence" means tests, analyses, research, studies, 

or other evidence based on the expertise of professionals in the relevant area, that has been 

conducted and evaluated in an objective manner by persons qualified to do so, using procedures 

generally accepted in the profession to yield accurate and reliable results. 

7. "Covered product or service" means any dietary supplement, food or drug, or any 

service purporting to provide health-related benetlts. 

8. "Defaulting Defendants" means Lance Thomas Atkinson, Tnel Ventures Ply Ltd., Tango 

Pay lnc., Click Fusion Inc. and TwoRucks Trading Limited, and their successors and assigns. 

9. "Document" is synOnymOll~ in meaning and equal in scope to the usage ofthe tenn in 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writing, drawings, graphs, charts, Internet 

sites, Weh pages, Web sites, electronic correspondence, photographs, audio and video 

recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from which infonnation can be 

obtained and translated, if necessary, through detection devices into reasonably usable fonn. A 

draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning of the tenn. 

10. "Electronic mail address" "means a destination, commonly expressed as a string of 

characters, consisting of a unique user name or mailbox (commonly referred to as the "local 

part") and a reference to an Internet domain (commonly referred to as thc "domain part"), 

whether or not displayed, to which an electronic mail message can be sent or delivered." 

15 U.S.C. § 7702(5). 

II. "Header information" "means the source, destination, and routing infonnation attached 

to an electronic mail message, including the originating domain name and originating electronic 

9 
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A. misrepresenting, or assisting other in misrepresenting, expressly or by 

implication, any material fact, including but not limited to: 

1. that they are a bona fide u.s. licensed phannacy that employs board 

certified \Uologists and endocrinologists; or 

2. that they dispense U.S. FDA approved drugs. 

B. failing to disclose clearly and prominently on each Web page or commercial 

electronic mail message where prescription drugs or pharmacy services arc advertised, 

promoted, offered for sale or sold: 

I. the name, business address, and phone number of the pharmacy that will 

dispense the prescription drug, and the state or states where such 

phannacy is licensed or registered to do business; 

2. the name, address, and phonc number ofthe physician who will review the 

information provided by the cOnSumer for the purpose of delennining 

whether to issue or authorize the prescription, if such service is offered, 

and the state or states where the physician is licensed or authorized to 

practice medicine; 

3. the name, business address, phone number and a contact person for the 

entity offering the prescription drugs; 

4. the state or states from which the entity will accept orders for prescription 

drugs; and 

5. that "Dispensing a prescription drug without a valid preSCription is a 

violation of Federal law. More information about purchasing prescription pr68mt.5 183 Tc 5.c 11.5 0 tha43
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IV. OTHER PROHlBITED PRODUCT CI.AIMS 

IT IS FURTHER ORllERED that the Defaulting Defendants. their officers, agents, 

servants, employees, and attorneys, and those persons or entities in active concert or 

participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or 

otherwise, whether acting directly or through any trust, corporation, subsidiary, di vision, or other 

device, or any of them, in connection with the manufacturing, labeling, advertising, promotion, 

offering for sale, sale, or distribution of any covered product or service, in or alleeting 

commerce, are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from making, or assisting others in 

making, any representation, in any manner, expressly or by implication, including through the 

use of endorsements, about the health benefits, absolute or comparative benefits, performance, 

safety, or etllcacy of such product Or service unless, at the time the representation is made, 

Defendants possess and rely upon competent and reliable scientific evidence that substantiates 

the representation. 

V. PROHIBITED SECURITY CLAIMS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defaulting Defendants, their officers, agents, 

servants, employees, and attorneys, and those persons or entities in active concert or 

participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or 

otherwise, whether acting directly or tluough any tJust, corporation, subsidiary, 



Case 1:08-cv-05666     Document 51      Filed 11/04/2009     Page 15 of 25

fact relating to the security measures employed on any Web site, including, but not limited to 

that: 

A, the information customers provide to the Defaulting Defendants' Web sites is 

encrypted; or 

B. the Defaulting Defendants use an SSL secure connection when transmitting this 

information over the Internet 

VI, PROHIBJTED CAN-SPAM PRACTICES 

IT IS :FURTHER ORDERED that the Defaulting Detendants, their officers, agents, 

servants, employees, and attorneys, and those persons or entities in active concert or 

participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this Ordcr 
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VII. EQUITABLE MONETARY RELIEF 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that 

A. Judgment is hereby entered in favor of the FTC and against Defendants Lance 

Thomas Atkinson and rnet Venntres Pty Ltd .• joint! y and severally, in the amolUlt 

of$15, 151,029 as equitable monetary rclieffor violations of the FTC Act and the 

CAN-SPAM Act. This monetary judgment shall become immediately due and 

payable upon entry of this Order, and interest computed at the rate prescribed 

under 28 US.C § 1961(a), as amended, shall immediately begin to entered in 

and against Defendants 3 c t  severally, an,3904 Tc 11.437 0 T63.68 8  63 the This judgment shall p r e s c r i b e d  

563 and shall immediately 4 0 3  2 n d  8 n t e r e s t  m a 1 8 7  T c  3 . 0 8 3 0  T d - 3 d . 2 4 6  p a y a 3 7  0 j 
 0 . p p T c  5 . 4 4 c  2 . 1 5 4  0  T a y a 9 n d  
t h e  
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Defendants' practices alleged in the 
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documentslilr inspection and copying; appear for deposition; and provide entry 

during normal business hours to any business location in each Defaulting 

Defendant's possession or direct or indirect control to inspect the business 

operation; 

B_ In addition, the Commission is authorized to use all other lawful means, including 

but not limited to: 

l. obtaining discovery ti:om any person, without further leave ofCour!, using 

the procedures prescribed by Fed_ R_ Civ_ P. 30, 31, 33, 34, 36, 45 and 69; 

and 

2. having its representatives pose as consumers and suppliers to Defaulting 

Defendants, their 
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X. COMPLIANCE REPORTING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisions ol'this 

Order may be monitored: 

A. For a period of five (5) years Ii-om the date of entry of this Order, 

I. Lance Thomas Atkinson shall notify the FTC of the following: 

a. Any changes in his residence, mailing addresses and telephone 

numbers, wilhin len (10) days of the date of such change; 

b_ Any changes in his employmenl slalus (including 

self-employment) and any change in his ownership in any business 

enlily within ten (I 0) days of such change_ Such notice shall 

include the name and address of each business that he is affiliated 

with or employed by, creales or torms, or perfonns services lor; a 

detailed description oftbe nature of the business; and a detailed 

description of his duties and responsibilities in connection with the 

business or employment; and 

c. Any changes in his name or usc of any aliases or fictitious names 

within ten (10) days of the date of such change; 

2. Defaulting Defendants shall notify the Commission of any changes in 

structure ofTnet Venlures Ply Ltd_, Tango Pay Inc., Click Fusion Tnc_ or 

TwoBucks Trading Limited or any business entity that any Del'aulting 

Del'endant directly or indirectly controls, or has an ownership interest in, 

lhat may affect compliance obligations arising under this Order, including 

but not limited to: incorporation or other organization; a dissolution, 

19 
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assignment, sale, merger, or other action; the creation or dissolution of a 

subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or practices subject 

to this Order; or a change in the business name or address, at least thirty 

(30) days prior to such change, provided that, with respect to any such 

change in the business entity about which a Defaulting Defendant learns 

less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, such 

Defendant shall notifY the Commission as soon as is practicable after 

obtaining such knowledge, 

B. One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order and annually 

therealler tor a period of five (5) years, Defaulting Defendants each shall provide 

a written report to the Commission, which is true and accurate and sworn to lUlder 

penalty of perjury, setting filrth in detail the manner and fonn in which they have 

complied and are complying with this Order. This report shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

I. For Lance Thomas Atkinson: 

a. his then-current residence address, mailing addresses, and 

telephone numbers; 

b. his then-current employment status (including selt~cmployment), 

including the name, addresses, and telephone numbers o[ each 

business that he is affiliated with, employed by, or perfoffils 

services for; a detailed description of the nature of the business; 

and a detailed description of his duties and responsibilities in 

connection with the business or empluyment; and 

20 
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c. Any other changes required to be reported under Subsection A 

of this Section. 

2. For all Defaulting Defendants: 

a. A copy of each acknowledgment ofreceipt of this Order, obtained 

by Defaulting Defendants pursuant to the Section titled 

"Distribution of Order;" and 

b. Any other changes reqnired to be reported under Subsection A 

of this Section. 

C. Each Defaulting Dettmdant shall notifY tbe Commission of the filing of a 

bankruptcy petition by such Defcndant within fifteen (15) days of filing. 

D. For the purposes of this Order, Defaulting Defendants shall, unless otberwise 

directed by thc Commission's authorized representativcs, send by overnight 

courier all reports and notifications required by this Order to the Commission, to 

the following address: 

Associate Director of En forcement 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Room NJ-2122 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
Re: FTev. Atkinson, 08 C 5666 (N.D. IlL) 

Provided that, in lieu of overnight courier, Defaulting Dellmdants may send such 

reports or notifications by first-class mail, but only if Defaulting Defendants 

contemporaneously send an electronic version of sucb report or notitlcation to the 

Commission at: DEBriet@ftc.gov. 

21 



Case 1:08-cv-05666     Document 51      Filed 11/04/2009     Page 22 of 25

E. For purposes of the compliance reporting and monitoring required hy this Order, 

the Commi~sion is authorized to communicate directly with each Defaulting 

Defendant. 

XI. RECORDKEEPING 

iT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of eight 
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E. Copies of all sales scripts. training materials, advertisements, or other marketing 

materials; and 

F. All records and documents necessary to demonstrate filII compliance with each 

provision oflhis Order, including but not limited to, copies of acknowledgments 

ofreceipt or this Order required by the Sections titled "Distribution of Order" and 

"Acknowledgment of Receipt of Order" and all reports submitted to the FTC 

pursuant to the Section titled "Compliance Reporting." 

XU. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, tor a period offive (5) years from the date of entry 

of this Order, Dellmlting Defendants shall deliver copies of this Order as directed below: 

A. Corporate Defendant: Defendants Inet Ventures Pty Ltd., Tango Pay Inc., Click 

Fusion Inc., and Two Bucks Trading Limited each mu~t deliver a copy of this 

Order to (1) all of its principals, omcers, directors, and managers; (2) all of its 

employees, agents, and representatives who engage in conduct related to the 

subject mallet ofthe Order; and (3) any business entity resulting from any change 

in structure set forth in Subsection A.2 orthe Section titled "Compliance 

Reporting." For current personnel, delivery shall be within five (5) days of 

service of this Order upon such Defendant. For new personnel, delivery shall 

occur prior to them assuming their respon~ibilities. For any business entity 

resulting from any change in structure set torth in Subsection A.2 of the Section 

titled "Compliance Reporting," delivery shall be at least ten (10) days pri(lr to the 

change in the structure. 

23 
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B. Individual De1"endant as Control Person: For any business that Lance Thoma~ 

Atkinson controls. directly or indirectly, or in which he has a majority ownership 

interest, he must deliver a copy of this Order to (I) all principals, officcrs, 

directors, and managers of that business; (2) all employees, agents, and 

representatives 01" that business who engage in conduct related to the subject 

mattcr of the Order; and (3) any business entity resulting from any change in 

structure set forth in Subsection A.2 of the Section titled "Compliance 

Reporting." For current personnel, delivery shall be within five (5) days of 

service of this Order upon the Defendant. For new personnel, delivery shall occur 

prior to them assuming their responsibilities. For any business entity resulting 

trom any change in structure set forth in Subsection A.2 of the Section titled 

"Compliance Reporting," delivery shall be at least ten (10) days prior to the 

change in the structure. 

C. Individual Defendant as employee or non-control person: For any business where 

Lance Thomas Atkinson is not a controlling pcrson of a business but otherwise 

engages in conduct related to the subject matter of this Order, he must deliver a 

copy of this Order to all principals and managers 01" such business before 

cngaging in such conduct. 

D. Defaulting DetCndants must seeure a signed and dated statement acknowledging 

receipt of the Order, within thirty (30) days of delivery, from all persons receiving 

a copy of tile Order pursuant to this Section. 

24 
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• 

XHl. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ORDER 

IT IS FURTHF:R ORDERED tt


